
PV RFO FAQs 
 
General Questions: 
 
1. Can we bid multiple 20 MW projects from a larger sized interconnection?  For example can we bid 
three projects from a 50 MW interconnection position (20 MW, 20 MW, and 10 MW bid)? 
Per the PV PPA, each project/sub-project must have a dedicated step-up transformer and CAISO 
revenue meter located on the high-voltage side of the transformer. As long as each project/sub-project 
meets these metering requirements, then yes these bids would be acceptable. 
 
2. Why are the Energy Only and PCDS TOD factors the same now?  Does PG&E assess no value to the 
RA received from an FCDS project?  
A single set of TOD factors makes for simplicity and it reflects that for any given hour, the adjustment to 
contract price is the same for energy-only and fully deliverable projects.   
 
It does not mean that there is no RA value for the project.  The RA value is accounted for in the NMV 
calculation. 
 
3. Regarding the energy benefit calculation on the net market value assessment, are LMPs projected 
into the future or do you just take historical LMPs at the project node into the analysis? 
The LMP prices are calculated by applying an LMP multiplier to a forecast NP or SP price. LMPs are 
calculated based on historical data, and apply a ratio moving forward. 
 
4. For the 2016 PV RFO, will a 50MW project that meets all other criteria for maturity and online dates be 
considered or dismissed as non-conforming due to size caps?  
If a 50 MW project was bid in as a 50 MW project, it would be rejected as non-conforming since project size is 
capped at 20 MW for this solicitation. However, if the project was chunked into smaller sub-projects, for 
example a 20 MW, 20 MW, and 10 MW bid, and could meet the eligibility requirement that each have a 
dedicated step-up transformer and CAISO revenue meter on the high voltage side of the transformer, it 
would be conforming and could be submitted. 
 
5. I have a project with full deliverability status with no required deliverability upgrades located 
within PG&E Service Territory and interconnecting to a PG&E Substation, with a Tendered IA.  The 
substation is located in Path ZP26.  How will PG&E value RA and Full deliverability status at this 
location verses NP15 and SP15 and considering it is located within PG&E Service territory but outside 
of NP15. 
As Path ZP26 is in PG&E service territory, it is treated as NP15. PAV adjustments are truly for SP15 only, 
being outside of PG&E service territory. A project located at Path ZP26 with full deliverability would get 
full capacity value. 
 
6. We are at the end of a Fast Track study for a potential FIT site and would like to submit an 
application for this FIT.  Does the study have to be completed in whole by Jan 18th, or if we show 
progress would that be ok?  We have been in this study since May 2016 and expect approval any day 
now. 
At the time of offer submittal on January 18th, the offer must be accompanied by a completed Phase II 
study. Any project with a Phase II study in progress will be rejected since it does not meet the eligibility 
requirement of having a completed Phase II study at the time of offer submittal. 
 



7. What value does PG&E assign to full deliverability RA value?  
The value that PG&E assigns to full deliverability RA depends on its location. Any NQC MWs associated 
with technology will be multiplied by the $/MW RA value. The NQC is calculated using equivalent load 
carrying capability. Additional detail is available in the LCBF Protocol. The RA price curve itself is 
confidential and starts at short run cost capacity and rises to the long run cost of capacity when generic 
RA resources are needed. For resources in SP15, short run cost capacity is applied throughout the 
delivery term. 
  
8. Can we install and activate a site any time after PPA approval and subsequent agreement with 
PGE?  If PV is installed and activated within 12 months of approval/agreement is that ok?  
Under the terms of the PV PPA, the Commercial Operation Date (COD) cannot occur more than 180 days 
prior to the Guaranteed Commercial Operation Date (GCOD). With an anticipated GCOD of July 31, 
2020, the earliest COD that could occur under this PPA while still being within the allowable window of 
180 days prior to GCOD would be January 31, 2020.  These dates are expected as of now and will 
become firm once the CPUC approves the executed PPA’s. 
 
 
 
 


